ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 26, 2004
8:03 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Bruce Weyhrauch, Chair
Representative JimHolm Vice Chair
Representati ve John Coghil |
Representative Bob Lynn

Represent ati ve Paul Seaton
Representative Ethan Berkow tz
Representati ve Max Gruenberg

VEVMBERS ABSENT
Al l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 351

"An Act relating to the devices, including carbon nonoxide
detection devices, required in dwellings; and providing for an
effective date.”

- MOVED CSHB 351( STA) QUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE Bl LL NO. 297
"An Act relating to wildfires and other natural disasters.”

- MOVED HB 297 QUT OF COW TTEE
HOUSE BI LL NO. 422
"An Act repealing the special subaccount established in the
constitutional budget reserve fund; relating to the powers of
the Departnent of Revenue for the investnent of anmounts in the
constitutional budget reserve fund; and providing for an
effective date.”

- HEARD AND HELD
DI SCUSSI ON W TH DI VI SI ON OF ELECTI ONS

- HEARD

HOUSE BI LL NO. 466

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -1- February 26, 2004



"An Act relating to investnents of Al aska permanent fund assets;
and providing for an effective date.”

- SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 351

SHORT TI TLE: CARBON MONOXI DE DETECTI ON DEVI CES
SPONSOR( S) : REPRESENTATI VE(S) GATTO, GRUENBERG

01/ 12/ 04 (H PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 2/ 04

01/ 12/ 04 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS

01/ 12/ 04 (H L&C, STA

01/ 21/ 04 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17

01/ 21/ 04 (H Heard & Held

01/ 21/ 04 (H M NUTE( L&C)

01/ 23/ 04 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17

01/ 23/ 04 (H Moved CSHB 351(L&C) Qut of Conmittee
01/ 23/ 04 (H M NUTE( L&C)

01/ 26/ 04 (H L&C RPT CS(L&C) 5DP

01/ 26/ 04 (H DP: CRAWCRD, LYNN, GATTO, GUTTENBERG
01/ 26/ 04 (H) ANDERSON

02/ 19/ 04 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 102

02/ 19/ 04 (H Schedul ed But Not Heard

02/ 26/ 04 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 102

BILL: HB 297

SHORT TI TLE: W LDFI RES AND NATURAL DI SASTERS
SPONSCR( S) : REPRESENTATI VE(S) STOLTZE

05/ 05/ 03 (H READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
05/ 05/ 03 (H STA, RES

01/ 13/ 04 (H) STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TCL 102

01/ 13/ 04 (H <Bi || Hearing Postponed>

02/ 03/ 04 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 102

02/ 03/ 04 (H Schedul ed But Not Heard

02/ 05/ 04 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 102

02/ 05/ 04 (H Heard & Held

02/ 05/ 04 (H) M NUTE( STA)

02/ 26/ 04 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 102

BILL: HB 422
SHORT TI TLE. BUDGET RESERVE FUND | NVESTNMENT
SPONSOR( S):  FI NANCE

02/ 02/ 04 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 2- February 26, 2004



02/ 02/ 04 (H) STA, FIN

02/ 10/ 04 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 102
02/ 10/ 04 (H Schedul ed But Not Heard
02/ 26/ 04 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 102

W TNESS REG STER

REPRESENTATI VE CARL GATTO

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as one of the sponsors of HB 351.

KELLY NI COLELLO, Assistant State Fire Marshal

Central Ofice

Division of Fire Prevention

Department of Public Safety

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answer ed questions during discussion of HB
351.

JOHN BI TNEY, Lobbyi st

for Al aska State Hone Buil ders Association

Pal mer, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answered questions during the hearing on HB
351.

THOVAS G KEMPTON, Deputy Fire Chief

Anchor age Fire Departnent

Muni ci pality of Anchorage

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on HB 351.

REPRESENTATI VE BI LL STOLTZE

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Spoke as sponsor of HB 297.

JAMES ARMSTRONG, St af f

to Representative WlliamK WIIlians

House Fi nance Conmittee

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented HB 422 on behalf of the House
Fi nance Committee, sponsor, whi ch IS co-chaired by
Representative WIIians.

TOVAS H BOUTIN, Deputy Comm ssioner

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 3- February 26, 2004



Departnent of Revenue
Juneau, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on HB 422.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 04-23, SIDE A
Number 0001

CHAI R BRUCE WEYHRAUCH called the House State Affairs Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 8:03 a.m Represent ati ves
Weyhrauch, Holm Seaton, and G uenberg were present at the call
to order. Representatives Coghill, Lynn, and Berkowitz arrived
as the meeting was in progress.

HB 351- CARBON MONOXI DE DETECTI ON DEVI CES

CHAI R VEYHRAUCH announced that the first order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO 351, "An Act relating to the devices,
including carbon nonoxide detection devices, required in
dwel l'ings; and providing for an effective date.” [Before the
commttee was CSHB 351(L&C). ]

Number 0072

REPRESENTATI VE CARL GATTO, Al aska State Legislature, one of the
two prinme sponsors of HB 351, pointed out that the conmttee
packet should include a KTUU- TV news release [dated 2/25/04]
that relates to a recent death from carbon nonoxi de poi soning.
He said the original idea behind this |legislation had nore to do
with [saving] <children and [keeping] them from long-term
exposure to low |l evels of carbon nonoxide. Representative Gatto
enphasized that children have a higher netabolic rate than
adults; therefore, they accumulate carbon nonoxide in their
blood at a rate nuch faster than adults. He posed a situation
in which there is a mlfunctioning furnace that produces

continual low |evels of carbon nonoxide. In such a situation,
peopl e could unknowingly live with a consistent, persistent |ow
| evel of carbon nonoxide for nonths or even years. He

continued, the youngsters in this house would have a |owl evel
| oad of carbon nonoxide and when outside the house, say, at
school, would tend to purge sone of that, although the
youngster, once returning honme, would again reload with |ow
| evel s of carbon nonoxi de.

Nunber 0431

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -4- February 26, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE GATTO explained that oxygen is carried through
the body via henoglobin, which is a nolecule that is capable of
attaching to red blood cells to carry the oxygen through the
body. However, the henoglobin can also carry carbon nonoxide,
which is very difficult to release [from the henoglobin].
Therefore, when henoglobin circulates in the body wth only
carbon nonoxide, one is essentially starving the body of oxygen
t hat shoul d' ve been avail abl e.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said that although the sinplest way to
purge the body of carbon nonoxide is to get fresh air for a
period of tine, the concern is with regard to the persistent |ow

| evel s of carbon nonoxide. Therefore, Representative Gatto
viewed requiring carbon nonoxide detectors as equally valuable
as having snoke detectors. The goal is to identify when any

source of carbon nonoxide is detected, and thus this |egislation
requests that carbon nonoxide detectors be dealt with in the
sane way as snpbke detectors. He pointed out that when fire
fighters arrive at a fire in which the snoke detector is
ringing, they are able to fight the fire a bit differently
because the fire fighters are fairly sure that the people have

left the building and the fire can be addressed. |In the absence
of a ringing snoke detector, fire fighters have to perform a
search and rescue before addressing the fire. A simlar

situation <could occur wth a carbon nonoxide detector.
Representative Gatto stressed that carbon nonoxi de detectors are
enornmously valuable in protecting people and usually only cost
$25 to $50.

Number 0797

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO infornmed the commttee that he has a carbon
nonoxi de detector in every bedroom in his house, one by the
furnace, and one in the living room Occasional ly, the carbon
nonoxi de detector in the basenment goes off due to a car being
started [before] leaving the garage. Also, the carbon nonoxide
detector in the basenent goes off when there is a tenperature
i nversion. He explained that a tenperature inversion is a
situation in which the furnace hasn't started in sone tinme and
the chimmey gets cold and thus cold air can conme down the
chimmey and create a draft fromthe top heading dowmn. 1In such a
situation when the furnace ignites, it's not able to overcone
the downdraft and thus the conbustion products leak into the
house. He said that although this situation is normal, one nust
know that it's happeni ng.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 5- February 26, 2004



CHAI R WEYHRAUCH noted that Representative Guenberg is also a
prinme [sponsor] of this |egislation.

Nunmber 0851

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO, in discussing a tragedy resulting from
carbon nonoxi de poisoning, pointed out that a carbon nonoxide
detector can be set off by construction, steam and significant
anounts of dust. In response to Chair Wyhrauch, Representative
Gatto informed the committee that as a fire fighter, whenever he
was called to a residence, he would go through the hone and | ook
for any dangers that were present. He estimated that in half
the honmes there was a snoke detector that was disabled.
However, the beauty of a carbon nonoxi de detector is that it can
be plugged in and it wll wrk no mtter the location

Furthernore, he noted that there are battery backups.

Nunmber 1080

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN turned to the "installed and naintained"
| anguage in the |legislation. He asked if a famly's life
i nsurance would be inpacted if it were determned that a carbon
nonoxi de detector wasn't maintained [in a situation in which
death resulted from carbon nonoxi de poi soni ng].

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO stated his belief that carbon nobnoxide
detectors are nai ntenance-free.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG responding to Representative Lynn's
guestion, explained that a carbon nonoxi de detector that wasn't
mai ntained wouldn't inpact Ilife insurance because the death
woul d sinply be considered an acci dent.

Nunber 1207

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG recalled that in the House Labor and
Comrerce Standing Committee, Representative Rokeberg raised an
issue with regard to nulti-famly dwellings and whether this
| egi slation would require every hotel to have a carbon nonoxide
detector in every room He said that the answer to that
guestion is no, because the definition of "dwelling unit" refers
to AS 34.03. 360, which specifies the foll ow ng:

"dwelling wunit"™ means a structure or a part of a
structure that 1is used as a hone, residence, or
sl eepi ng place by one person who nai ntains a household
or by two or nore persons who nmaintain a comon

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 6- February 26, 2004



househol d, and includes nobile homes, and if | ocated
in a nobile hone park, the lot or space upon which a
nobi |l e hone is placed;

Number 1279

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG surm sed, then, that this |egislation
woul dn't apply unless an individual is permanently living in a
hot el . If an individual is permanently living in a hotel, the
hotel would need to place a carbon nonoxide detector in the
room

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG recalled that [in the House Labor and
Commerce Standing Commttee] Representative Lynn inquired as to
why the legislation didn't have an immediate effective date.
Representative Guenberg explained that the legislation takes
effect on January 1, 2005, because it was nodeled after the
snoke detector legislation which had an effective date that
allowed tinme for installation.

REPRESENTATIVE LYNN clarified that his query regarding an
imrediate effective date was related to requiring the
installation of a carbon nonoxide detector when there is a
transfer of property when other requirenents such as a snoke
detector are required to be installed. However, the effective
date for the general population [could remain January 1, 2005].

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG proposed that the effective date could
be renoved, which would nmeke the legislation effective 90 days
after the governor signs it.

Nunber 1472

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON referred to page 2, line 19, which says,
"I's adjacent to a parking space", and inquired as to what that
| anguage neans. Representative Seaton opined that wth the
qualifications [listed on page 2, lines 16-19] alnobst no
[dwel ling] is going to be excl uded.

Nunmber 1544
REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG related his thought that there was
concern that one could be in a notel room which sits adjacent to

a parking space and thus funes could enter into the room

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON pointed out that earlier there was
testinmony that a notel woul dn't be covered under this

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -7- February 26, 2004



| egi sl ati on. Therefore, Representative Seaton surmsed that a
notel room wouldn't be covered unless the individual is living
there on a continual basis, regardless of whether the equipnent
is malfunctioning. Representative Seaton said, "I just have a
concern as to the physical attributes of the situation we're
trying to cover, and yet now we're saying it's not the physica
situation that we're covering but it's the duration of your
occupancy. "

Nunber 1694

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG reiterated that notels aren't covered,
but announced that he wouldn't have a problem with accepting an
anendnent specifying that this legislation would cover notel
units adjacent to a parking space.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO noted that generally at a notel, people
will start their car and then let it idle. And al t hough the
exposure time is probably limted, he highlighted that cold
starts of autonobiles are [mjor] contributors of carbon
nonoxi de. In the case of a notel, he anticipated that a car
would be idling for a brief period and it would be a one-tine
exposure versus [an exposure from for exanple,] a defective
fur nace. However, he didn't believe that anmount of carbon
nonoxi de exposure in this situation would cause death. He
explained the goal of this legislation is to address the
continuous | ow1|evel carbon nonoxi de exposure in a hone.

Nunber 1841

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM noted that in the Fairbanks area there is an
anbient air restriction of 9 parts per mllion (ppm of carbon
nonoxi de and yet all the data specifies that 35 ppm for eight
hours is tolerable. He inquired how many ppm of carbon nonoxi de
woul d cause a carbon nonoxi de detector to go off.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO answered, "They're tine-weighted." He
specified that an instant spike will cause the carbon nonoxide
detector to go off, and continuous |owlevel exposure wll set
it off as well. Representative Gatto said he didn't believe

carbon nonoxi de detectors would be triggered at 35 ppm [ because
it is believed to be] tolerated.

Nunmber 1968

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM returned to the fact that carbon nonoxide
exposure is cunulative, and he inquired as to when the 9 ppm

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 8- February 26, 2004



woul d accunulate to the point at which the detector would be
triggered.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO expl ained that the steady [exposure] is 9
ppm and one can have exposure at 9 ppm and never reach 10 or 11
ppm In further response to Representative Holm Representative
Gatto specified that the carbon nonoxide detectors read the
anbient air quality and maintain a reading of the highest |evel.

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH inquired as to why the |anguage "qualifying
dwel ling unit"” was used rather than "qualified dwelling unit".

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG responded that was the | anguage
[ Legi sl ative Legal and Research Services] suggested, but noted
that he didn't have a problem with a change to the |anguage
"qualified dwelling unit".

Nunber 2111

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO, in response to Chair Wyhrauch, noted that
there are no carbon "nonoxide detector police" or "snoke

detector police,” although there is usually an advisory
committee. However, in the <case of a Ilandlord-tenant
[relationship] it's clear that the Jlandlord nust make it

available to the tenant on the first day of occupancy, after
which it becones the tenant's responsibility to maintain it.
Representative Gatto characterized this [legislation] as nore of
an alert. For instance, firenen can cone into a hone, point out
a violation, and distribute information [on the requirenent].
Representative Gatto said he wasn't anticipating any |evel of
enf orcenment .

Number 2150

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG pointed out that this legislation
anends AS 18.70.095, and a violation of that statute is a
m sdeneanor . This requirenment would be tacked on to the snpke
det ector |aw.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON returned to the "adjacent to a parking
space" | anguage, asking whether all the floors of a multi-I|evel
unit with parking spaces adjacent to the ground |evel would be
consi dered adj acent to the parking space.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG answered that the upper levels wouldn't
be considered adjacent to the parking space. However, he

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 9- February 26, 2004



requested that the comittee address this question to M.
Ni col el l o, Departnment of Public Safety.

Nunber 2234

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH nentioned that every tine there is legislation
requiring people to do new things, the reaction is that
gover nnment is replacing [an individual's] responsibility.
Therefore, he questioned why this legislation is good policy.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO agreed that individuals are entitled to
live as they w sh. However, one isn't entitled to damage other
menbers of the family by the same activity. He pointed out that
t he governnent requires that people take care of their children.

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH asked, then, if the legislation should only
apply to those dwellings with children.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO opined that doing so would conplicate the
| egi sl ati on.

Nunmber 2382

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG returned to the question regarding
whether there is an enforcenment penalty, pointing out that HB
351 anmends AS 18.70.095, which is covered in statute as foll ows:

Sec. 18. 70. 100. Cri m nal penal ty; appeal of
adm ni strative orders.

(a) A person who violates a provision of AS
18.70.010 - 18.70.100 or a regulation adopted under
those sections, or who fails to conply with an order
i ssued under AS 18.70.010 - 18.70.100, is guilty of a
class B m sdeneanor. When not otherw se specified,
each 10 days that the violation or nonconpliance
continues is a separate offense.

Number 2430

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG hi ghlighted that a class B m sdeneanor
is currently the |owest m sdeneanor. In response to Chair
Weyhrauch's earlier question, Representative G uenberg specified
that this legislation is a hone-safety neasure of which there

are many in order to make a hone safe. The policy throughout
the nation has been that it's inportant to nake one's hone safe.
Returning to the notel/hotel issue, Representative G uenberg

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -10- February 26, 2004



opined that local building codes address notel and hotel
si tuations.

Nunber 2510

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noted that nany new houses are being built
with "fresh air exchange systens." He asked if the legislation
i ncludes any mtigation nmeasures for those devi ces.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO specified that the legislation is only
interested i n whet her carbon nonoxi de accunul ates in the hone.

Number 2596

KELLY N COLELLO, Assistant State Fire Mrshal, Central Ofice
Division of Fire Prevention, Departnent of Public Safety, said
that Representatives Gatto and Guenberg did a good job
answering the questions and he would' ve answered them nuch in
the same way. He indicated that [the intent] of the |egislation
was to address apartnents with adjacent parking, nore so than
notels. However, a notel could fall under the sanme provision if
soneone was |iving there.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON pointed out that the parking spot in front
of a hotel room may not necessarily be used by the individual in
that room soneone from an upper floor could start his/her car -
which nay be parked in front of an occupied room adjacent to
that parking space - and let it warmup for quite sone tine.

Number 2706

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked whether the above situation
shoul d be covered in the | egislation.

MR. NI COLELLO characterized it as a judgnent call, noting that
there is no enpirical data denonstrating that people have | ost
their lives [due to carbon nonoxide poisoning from adjacent
par ki ng spaces] in notels. He nmentioned that Anchorage is in
favor of "that particular issue also.™ M. Nicolello said that
he didn't have any objection to including the notel issue.
However, he noted [his assunption] that the [legislation] would
be limted to those parking directly in front of or adjacent to
the notel roons. "Qutside of that, there'd be no other reason
to include those,"” he said.

Nunber 2792

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -11- February 26, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE GATTO commented that in extrenme environnments it
woul d be unlikely for there to be an open w ndow on a m nus-30-

degree day. Therefore, the air exchange in a notel room is
probably governed nore by the building's heating system to
protect it. Therefore, he suspected that the building is

al ready pretty tight.

MR. NI COLELLO said that he believes Representative Gatto has a
good point with regard to the tightness of construction,
especially in those honmes built in the last five or so years.
He pointed out that the tighter the house, the nore probable it
is that carbon nonoxide that |eaks from equi pnment in the house
woul d stay there longer than in a home built in, say, the 1970s.
The aforenmentioned is another reason to advocate for carbon
nonoxi de detectors (indisc. - coughing).

Nunmber 2869

JOHN BITNEY, Lobbyist for the Alaska State Hone Builders
Association (ASHBA), inforned the commttee that the state board
of ASHBA has wunaninously voted to support this |[|egislation.
Wth regard to the effective date, M. Bitney related that ASHBA
believes a sinple effective date is best. However, ASHBA is
indifferent to how the effective date is established. In
response to Chair Wyhrauch, M. Bitney explained that carbon
nonoxi de detectors |look simlar in size to a snoke detector and
sound an alarm simlar to that of a snoke detector. He
clarified that carbon nonoxi de detectors can be plugged into an
outlet or used with a nine-volt battery.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG sai d that he wanted to have at |east 90
days [after passage] for people to get up to speed on this.
Furthernore, he said he wanted to have the sane effective date
for everyone. I n l'ight of M. Bitney's testi nony,
Representative Guenberg related that he would be confortable
with the January 1st effective date or renoving the effective
date fromthe | egislation.

Number 2985
REPRESENTATI VE LYNN indicated that, practically speaking, having
no effective date and thus having the legislation take effect in

90 days [woul d be appropriate].

TAPE 04-23, SIDE B
Nunber 2982

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -12- February 26, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said [the legislation] would be effective
right after Christnmas. He indicated that "these would be decent
Christmas presents” that people would be encouraged to give as
smal | gifts.

Nunber 2937

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked how many units would be required to
service Al aska. He pointed out that once the bill goes into
effect, it wll be a class B m sdeneanor not to have [a carbon
nonoxi de detector] in place. He stated his concern that a 90-
day effective date may be too short [for people to conply wth
the new law], thus resulting in "a lot of crimnals.”

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO responded that he doesn't know the nunber
however, he opined that in the free market, stores will probably
t ake advantage of advertising tine and keep a supply in stock.

Nunmber 2877

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH noted that there are also problens with other
gases in the air, such as radon. He asked if the legislature
shoul d al so require detectors for radon gas.

Number 2861

MR. BITNEY responded, "Perhaps we should.™ He rem nded the
commttee that the state does have an energy efficiency
standard, wunder Al aska Housing [Finance Corporation], which
requires "higher levels of air tightness”" in hones. He
mentioned that there are residential code areas. He said, "In
the case of radon gas, ... [regardless] of your code or sone of
these other issues, | think you' re facing a situation there that
really can't be addressed.”

Nunmber 2766

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO proffered that the test for radon is a one-
time test; either a honme has radon | eaking or it doesn't.

REPRESENTATI VE ~ GRUENBERG i ndi cat ed he IS gr at ef ul for
[ Representative Gatto's work on] this |egislation.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON referred to a list of manufacturers [of

carbon nonoxide detectors] and asked if all of them have been
approved for "satisfying the requirenents of this bill."

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -13- February 26, 2004



Nunber 2721

MR. NI COLELLO replied that the requirenent is that the unit be
"UL [Underwriters Laboratories Inc.] listed for use." He added,
"And if that's the case, then it would be approved by us."

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON renmarked that the proposed |egislation
states that the devices nust be approved by the state fire
mar shal , and he said he wants to nake certain that they are.

MR. NI COLELLO responded that that nmay be an issue, because then
the state would carry a liability for the type of device that is
bei ng used. He continued as foll ows:

W have all kinds of different types of systens and
facilities - fire alarns, fire suppression systens -
and we do not reconmend any of these products either,
because we're not a testing facility to say, "Yes,

this will meet the requirenent.” W rely on third
party testing to determ ne whether or not a product
can be used (indisc. - coughing). And ... any third-

party testing reference using a national standard that
certifies that the product does as the standard says
that it should do would be authorized for use through
our office.

Nunber 2650

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON turned to the | anguage on page 1, lines 7-
8, which read: "The devices shall be of a type and installed in
a manner approved by the state fire marshal.” He said he wants

to know if that language is or is not a problem for M.
Ni col el | 0.

MR. NI COLELLO answered that it could be a problem from the
standpoint of "putting our mark on sonething to say it's
approved" and determning which nobdels are appropriate versus

those that are not. He explained that could create problens in
t he market pl ace. He said "we" would rely on the third-party
testing reference. He noted that each manufacturer includes
i nstructions for instal lation [ of t he car bon nonoxi de
detectors]. He said, "W would defer to that, because they are
the expert on their own product and have the liability for their
own product. We don't want to assune any of their liability in
that area."

Number 2590

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -14- February 26, 2004



CHAI R WEYHRAUCH asked M. N colello if he is saying, "If you
have to approve it, ... it's going to increase your fiscal
note."

MR. N COLELLO answered no, it's nore of "a liability on the
state."

Nunber 2579

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG began discussion of what becane
Conceptual Anendnent 1. He indicated that a change nmade to the
| egislation on page 1, lines 7-8, wuld also apply to snpke
detection devices. He explained that the |anguage already
states that [the devices] nust be installed in a nmanner that's
approved by [the state fire marshal].

MR. N COLELLO responded that "that part is easy on the snoke
detector,"” because the building code states where and what type
of snoke detector "you wll install in your hone." He added,
"I't makes no nention of a carbon nonoxi de detector.”

Number 2531

REPRESENTATI VE CRUENBERG asked M. Nicolello if he would Iike
[the previously cited | anguage on page 1], line 7, to be changed
to read: "Snoke detection devices shall be of a type and
installed in a manner approved by the state fire nmarshal.” He

added, "And we have another sentence relating to these carbon
nonoxi de devi ces. "

MR. NI COLELLO responded that that woul d be appropriate.

Nunber 2502

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM said he suspects what would be |ooked at
woul d be the manufacturers' recommendations, "and then that's
what should be maybe put into the statute here, rather than
putting the onus on the state.”

Nunmber 2482

REPRESENTATIVE HOLM offered the foregoing as [ Conceptual
Amendnent 1] .

MR. N COLELLO replied that he would recommend "sonething to that
effect.”

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -15- February 26, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG stated that that would be agreeable
with the sponsors of the bill

Number 2460

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH offered his understanding that Conceptua
Anmendnent 1 would read as foll ows:

Page 1, line 7:
Bet ween "The" and "devi ces"
| nsert "smnmoke detection”

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH asked if there were any objections to adoption
of Conceptual Amendnent 1. There being none, it was so ordered.

Number 2441

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM suggested [ Conceptual Anendnent 2], to say,
"The carbon nonoxide detection devices shall be installed in a
manner consistent with manufacturers' recommendation[s]."

Nunber 2417
MR. N COLELLO responded that if the |language were to say,

"installed and maintained to manufacturers' specifications", it
woul d "cover you on both accounts.™

Nunber 2390

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noted that there are a couple of different
ki nds of devi ces. For exanple, there are devices with warning
signals and those with passive nmeters with buttons that change
col or. He asked if it is the sponsors' intention that these
devices will have an audible signal. He added, "If we don't
have sonmething, we're going to have little 79-cent passive

devices on the wall that you have to see that they turn black."

Nunber 2354

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO agr eed. He said he has "had those devices
in flying airplanes.” He said, "They wouldn't be of any val ue
in a hone. It didn't even occur to ne that they would even be
mar keted, and they certainly wouldn't be approved by [the] fire
marshal or be UL-Ilisted. So, |I'm guessing they would be
excl uded under those bases.™ He indicated that |anguage added

to elicit an audi bl e al arm woul d be excell ent.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -16- February 26, 2004



Number 2317

CHAIR VEYHRAUCH turned to page 1, line 8, and clarified that
proposed Conceptual Amendnent 2 would read as foll ows:

Page 1, line 8:

After "fire marshal ."

| nsert: "The carbon nonoxi de detection device shall
have an audible alarm and be installed and naintained
according to manufacturers' recomrendations.”

Number 2295

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG revealed that he comes from a famly
that is alnost totally deaf and can't even hear doorbells. He
asked if there are other kinds of devices [that would be
effective for a deaf person's use].

Nunber 2276

MR. NI COLELLO responded that the basic alarm node in [the carbon
nonoxi de detection devices] is sound. However, they are also
avai l able with visual devices for the hearing-inpaired. He said
he imgines that a home built to ADA [Anericans wth
Disabilities Act] requirenents would have both the sound and
visual alarm however, nost [hearing] people's homes would only
have t he sound-al arm devi ce.

Number 2250

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said, "Wth that, M. Chair, | would
request that we just leave it as [Representative Holm suggested
initially."

Number 2240

THOVAS G KEMPTON, Deputy Fire Chief, Anchorage Fire Departnent,
Municipality of Anchorage, told the committee that yesterday,
the departnent responded to a carbon nonoxide call. He referred
to the man who was found dead and the woman who was found
poi soned. He stated that a vehicle left running in the garage
had been the source of the carbon nonoxide in the honme. |If the
carbon nonoxi de detector had been present, he said, those people
at least would have received sone alert to the odorless,
col orl ess gas that was produced by that vehicle.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -17- February 26, 2004



Nunber 2170

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH asked, "Do we agree that there should be sone
sort of alarm whether it's visual or audible?" [No objections
wer e stated. ]

Nunber 2159

CHAI R VWEYHRAUCH restated Conceptual Anmendnent 2 [text provided
previ ously]. He asked if there was any objection to adopting
it. There being none, it was so ordered.

Number 2086

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noved to renove the effective date [by
deleting line 10 on page 4].

Number 2071

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH asked, "Why not have an inmmediate effective
date? Sonebody coul d die between the passage of the bill and 90
days. "

REPRESENTATI VE CRUENBERG wi t hdrew hi s noti on.

CHAI R VEYHRAUCH stated that he thinks the commttee is trying to
neet the public's interest in having safe honmes that are
protected from carbon nonoxide, as well as [to consider] the
people's ability to get [carbon nonoxide detectors] installed in
their houses and get educated "as to the requirenent."”

Nunber 2051
REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG asked if the conmttee would like to
change the word "qualifying" [on page 2, line 15] to
"qualified".
Number 2015

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL stated, "Since we are going to nmake it a
crimnal offense, 'qualified" mght nmean that we have to go and
i nspect people's houses. | would object to that."

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH cl osed public testinony.

Nunber 1970

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 18- February 26, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE LYNN noved to report CSHB 351(L&C), as anended,
out of commttee wth individual recommendations and the
acconpanyi ng fiscal notes.

Number 1960

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL objected for discussion purposes. He
reveal ed that some good friends of his died because they didn't
have a [carbon nonoxi de] detector; thus he is sensitive to the

need [for this legislation]. He said he is and wll continue to
be an advocate for people putting [carbon nonoxide] detectors in
their houses. He said he understands "why nanufacturers

[and] housing builders should do it," and why it mght be "a
code issue," but he struggles with the governnment's invol venent
in mandating the requirenent. He said he is probably in the
mnority on this viewpoint, but would Iike to have the chance to
vote on it.

Number 1840

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG responded, "In those areas where they
are covered by code, |I'm sure there's already a penalty for
violating that." He explained that [the proposed |egislation]
would bring "the areas where there's no building code" into
conpl i ance. He said he hopes the mjority party of the
| egi slature would feel that although this may be an intrusion,
it would be a small intrusion that nmay save sone |ives.

Nunmber 1785

REPRESENTATIVE COGHI LL said he actually agrees wth that.
However, he offered an exanple of a public canpaign that was
called for by the nmayor of Anchorage, whereby the Anerican Red
Cross got involved, donations were nmade by the conpanies, and a

huge public awareness canpaign took place. He said, "To ne,
that's society working together. This is governnent nmaking a
mandate - putting a crimnal offense on it - and |I don't know

that it hel ps that nuch.”
Nunmber 1730

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM concurred with Representative Coghill. He
stated that while he has no problem with telling people that
[using a carbon nonoxide detector] is sonmething they should do,
he struggles with the issue of creating a class of crimnals
because they may choose not to [use a carbon nonoxi de detector]
or cannot afford one. He said he and his wife, who is a

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -19- February 26, 2004



school teacher, see nunerous cases where people put their
children at risk, and yet "we don't nmake crimnals out of the
parents.” He said he thinks it is sonetines problematic to
suggest that parents are crimnals because they may not do the
thing that "we, in our zeal to protect people” think is the
right thing. He added that he doesn't know how far "we" should
go, and he is glad that Representative Coghill brought up the
i ssue.

Nunber 1621

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said he has plug-in carbon nonoxide
detectors, but nany people live without electricity. He noted
that although there is a battery backup, it doesn't |ast nany
days. He said he wants to ensure that reasonably priced
battery-operated carbon nonoxi de detectors will be nmade readily
avai l able to those who live without electricity.

Number 1555

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO noted that sone snoke detectors have eight-
year batteries. He stated his belief that "a great many hones
sinply will not conply with this law." He added that there are
no carbon nonoxi de police. He said he thinks that [the proposed
| egi sl ati on] would give a |evel of awar eness [t hrough]
advertising canpaigns, for exanple. He explained that he is a
defender of [the legislation], because people who take the
single action to provide thenselves with a carbon nonoxide
detector now could be thankful for that action in the future.

Number 1390

MR. NI COLELLO, in response to Representative Seaton's previously
stated concern about those living without electricity not being
able to conply wth the proposed law, stated that both battery
backup and fully battery-operated carbon nonoxide detectors
exi st and are approved for use.

Number 1357

A roll call vote was taken. Representatives Holm Seaton, Lynn

Ber kowi tz, G uenberg, and Wwyhrauch voted in favor of noving
CSHB 351(L&C), as anended, out of commttee. Representati ve
Coghill voted against it. Therefore, CSHB 351(STA) was reported
out of the House State Affairs Standing Conmttee by a vote of
6- 1.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 20- February 26, 2004



HB 297- W LDFI RES AND NATURAL DI SASTERS

CHAl R VEYHRAUCH announced that the next order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO. 297, "An Act relating to wldfires and other
natural disasters."

Nunber 1273

REPRESENTATI VE BILL STOLTZE, Al aska State Legislature, spoke as
sponsor of HB 297. Representative Stoltze explained that he and
his staff had tried to answer the questions that were posed the
last tinme HB 297 was heard before the House State Affairs
Standi ng Conmittee. Representative Stoltze stated the reasons
that he is presenting this bill haven't changed. He said that
HB 297 deals with self-reliance and allowng people to help
t hensel ves despite the governnment's desires.

REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE said that in his district the people who
had violated the well-intentioned barricades set wup by the
police and fire departnments in order to protect their property,
ani mal s, or other cherished items were often the ones
responsi ble for saving those things. Adm tting that HB 297
still needed sone refining, Representative Stoltze said that it
is a start, and he wants to have a nechanism in place whereby
peopl e can help thenselves to protect their cherished itens from
fires. He said he agreed with the recommendati on of the House
State Affairs Standing Commttee that HB 297 should receive a
House Judiciary Standing Conmittee referral instead of a House
Resources Standing Conmittee referral. He also pointed out that
since HB 297 has an indetermnate fiscal note, it wll receive
nore scrutiny from the House Finance Conmttee. Representati ve
Stoltze offered to answer questions.

Nunber 1107

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOWN TZ commented that the title of HB 297
needed to be tightened up.

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH stated that those issues had been discussed
conceptually and it was on the record. He stated that those
i ssues needed to be reaffirmed, but there was discussion about
changing the title to add a new crine and to the rights rel ated
to persons affected by the bill

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ, expressing that he is probably the

| ast person in the legislature who believes in keeping the
crimnal code as sinple as possible, referred to Section 1 of

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -21- February 26, 2004



the bill. He said that instead of putting the specific crine
under AS 11.56.210, it should be under the false-information
section of AS 11.56.800. He noted that AS 11.56.800 already has
a section naeking false reports to the Departnent of Natural
Resources (DNR) a class A m sdeneanor

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOWN TZ shared that he thought that the
| anguage in AS 19.70.500 could also be "tightened up" so the
statute wouldn't be quite so |ong. He inquired about
[ subsecti on] (c) where the DNR is given the regulatory
authority, whereas in nost of Title 18 the regulatory authority
belongs to the Departnent of Public Safety. He stated that
there were sone issues there that needed to be resol ved.

Nunmber 1006

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ posed a hypothetical circunstance where
sonmeone was unable to return to his/her hone, and wanted to
desi gnate soneone else to do so for himher. He noted the way
that HB 297 was currently witten, no one other than the
resident would be able to return to the property, and he wanted
to address that issue.

Number 0963

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH nade the statenent that HB 297 was a
House Judiciary Standing Conmmttee bill, since it dealt with the
crimnal code and the liability of individuals. He said that HB
297 establishes sonme good policies that need to be noved
forward, but they need to be adapted to the current codes a
little better.

REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE agreed with the previous sentinents. He
stated that the conmttee process, although sonetinmes difficult,
yields a |l ot of valuable results.

Number 0906

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL asked Chair Wyhrauch if it was his
intention to pass along the information discussed in the House
State Affairs Standing Conmittee to the other cormittees that HB
297 is referred to, or whether the conmttee should adopt a
commttee substitute (CS) for HB 297 to record the information.

Number 0853

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -22- February 26, 2004



CHAIR WEYHRAUCH at first stated that the House State Affairs
Standing Commttee would have to adopt a CS for the bill in
order to reflect the discussion about it during the conmttee
neet i ngs. He then announced, however, that it is his intention
to provide a report containing all the anendnents to acconpany
the bill when HB 297 is reported out of the House State Affairs
Standi ng Conm ttee.

REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE agreed to incorporate the ideas that were
brought wup during the neeting into HB 297, stating that
everyt hi ng brought up nmade sense.

Nunmber 0807

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ commented that on page 2, line 7, of HB
297, there is a reference to AS 26. He said that he thought it
should be further specified to refer to AS 26.23, which
specifically deals with fires and ot her disasters.

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH suggested further changes he thought were
relevant to HB 297. He thought that under Section 2, where HB
297 anends AS 18.70.500, the word "disaster" should be changed

to "disasters", since the bill deals wth nmany types of natura
di sasters. He added that the title needed to be amended to
reflect that HB 297 inposes a new crine. Referring to page 2,

subparagraph (B), Chair Wyhrauch stated that the person should
be liable for any property damage, as well as death, and that he
t hought subparagraph (B) should reflect that. He pointed out a
| egal issue: on page 2, subsection (a), lines 5 and 6, the
statenent "clear and imediate threat” needs to be further
defi ned.

CHAI R VEYHRAUCH i nforned Representative Stoltze that it was his
intention to ask the House State Affairs Standing Conmittee to
nove HB 297 [unanended] with a report to acconpany the bill to
t he House Judiciary Standing Commttee. He added that it would
be Representative Stoltze's responsibility to get the House
Resources Standing Conmittee referral renoved and to get a House
Judiciary Standing Conmittee referral in its place.

Number 0575

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM noved to report HB 297 out of commttee with
i ndi vi dual recomendati ons, acconpanying fiscal notes, and the
previously nentioned commttee analysis. There being no
objection, HB 297 was reported from the House State Affairs
St andi ng Conmi ttee.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -23- February 26, 2004



HB 422- BUDGET RESERVE FUND | NVESTMENT

Nunmber 0495

CHAI R WVEYHRAUCH announced that the next order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO 422, "An Act repealing the special subaccount
established in the constitutional budget reserve fund; relating
to the powers of the Departnent of Revenue for the investnent of
anounts in the constitutional budget reserve fund; and providing
for an effective date.”

Number 0411

JAMES ARMSTRONG, Staff to Representative Wlliam K= WIIians,
presented HB 422 on behalf of the House Finance Comm ttee, which
Representative WIllians co-chairs. He explained that HB 422 was
sponsored by the House Finance Committee at the request of the
Department  of Revenue to repeal the subaccount in the
constitutional budget reserve fund (CBRF) created in the year
2000.

Number 0296

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ stated that it would be nore helpfu

for the commttee to have the backup information, particularly
about the rates of return for the different accounts. He
reminded the conmittee that t hen- Senat or Torgerson  had
introduced this legislation initially wth the intent of
increasing the rate of return for the CBRF portions that weren't
likely to be used to fund the governnent on a regul ar basis.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ pointed out that this is an opportunity
for the House State Affairs Standing Commttee to address the
m ni rum bal ance of noney that [the state] needs to keep in the
CBRF. He noted that Governor Mirkowski prefers a $1-billion
m ni mum Representative Berkowitz shared that he thought $1-
billion was too low. He followed that up with his beliefs that
a $1-billion mninum jeopardizes bond ratings and [the state]
risks losing the interest inconme that conmes from the CBRF as a
way to bridge the fiscal gap. He asked what the expectations
from|[the Department of Revenue] are by drawi ng down the CBRF.

TAPE 04-24, SIDE A
Number 0001

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 24- February 26, 2004



TOVAS H.  BOQUTIN, Deputy Conm ssioner, Departnent of Revenue,
expl ai ned the derivation of HB 422, stating that the CBRF isn't
being replenished, it is being drawn down regularly, and now
some $7 billion is owed to it. He added that investing equities
for a time horizon of five years isn't an appropriate investnent
and [the Departnent of Revenue] feels that it is better fiscally
to repeal the subaccount in the CBRF and thus had requested
i ntroduction of HB 422 to do so.

Nunber 0148

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH asked for clarification on the anount of noney
owed to the CBRF, and how much noney the CBRF currently has in
it.

MR. BOUTIN stated that $7 billion has been taken from the CBRF
and the current balance of the CBRF is $1.89 billion, including
t he subaccount that is involved in HB 422.

Nunber 0202

CHAI R WVEYHRAUCH asked why the sum of the noney owed to the CBRF
is $7 billion.

MR. BOQUTIN replied that the noney hasn't been replenished, and
if it had been replenished, then he believes another | ook at the
range of investnments would be in order. But the way the CBRF is
bei ng used now, it doesn't suggest that a five-year tinme horizon
is financially responsible.

Nunmber 0306

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM asked if he was correct in thinking that
right now [the state] borrows the noney [from the CBRF], and
never pays it back.

MR. BOUTIN stated it was his understanding that is what happens.
He qualified the borrowing from the CBRF by explaining that the
Department of Revenue, Treasury Division, borrows from the CBRF
regularly for cash flow reasons. He went on to explain that
because of the mismatch in cash flow throughout the year, it is
often necessary to draw from the CBRF early in the fiscal year
and then reinburse it when they collect the noney from the
federal governnent or the other sources of revenue. He added
that within the last six weeks $100 nillion was paid back to the
CBRF from the general fund for cash flow purposes, and it

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -25- February 26, 2004



doesn't | ook as though there will be another draw from the CBRF
this fiscal year

Nunmber 0466

MR. BOUTIN further explained that his previous coments didn't
really relate to HB 422. He stated that HB 422 was directed
towards elimnating the five-year investnent subaccount that is
currently in effect because it isn't good fundanental i nvestnent
policy and it should be a part of the main CBRF account.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ asked M. Boutin to contrast the rate
of return on the subaccount with the rate of return on the main
CBRF.

MR. BOUTIN, referring to the "CBR subaccount” graph, noted that
the subaccount has had a "rollercoaster” ride and has just
recently gotten back to the original anount that it had in the
year 2000. He added that the nost recent nunbers that he has
for the subaccount are from the second quarter for fiscal year
2003 and that the rate of return is at 7.81 percent. He stated
that the main CBRF's rate of return for fiscal year 2004, to
date, is at 0.78 percent.

Number 0711
REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ asked for clarification on the request
to nove noney from the subaccount that is yielding alnost 8

percent to an account that is yielding less than 1 percent.

MR. BOUTIN stated that [the Departnent of Revenue enpl oyees] are

not "market tiners"; they just use the Dbest i nvest nent
nmet hodol ogi es that they adopt in the quarterly neetings. He
said that it wouldn't be appropriate for [the Departnent of
Revenue] to be market tinmers. He added that the long-term

i nvestnment horizon that is in effect with the subaccount isn't
appropriate for the way that the CBRF is used by the state. He
explained that the Department of Revenue, on behalf of the
[ Alaska State] Pension Investnent Board, has investnents in
private equity and real estate, and nmmjor investnents in
equities. He continued that the way the CBRF is used, from a
fundanment al standpoint, doesn't suggest that anything besides a
fixed income should be used. He said that if the CBRF were used
differently later, then the investnent strategy should be
revisited. But the way it is used now, it isn't financially
sound to have the five-year horizon

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 26- February 26, 2004



Nunmber 0876

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ pointed out t hat the 7-percent
difference that would exist if the $400 mllion was shifted from

t he subaccount to the main CBRF account would yield $28 million
| ess per year, which is substantially in excess of nost of the
revenue-raising neasures that the current Ilegislature has

passed. He voiced his concern that the Departnent of Revenue's
proposal portrays a real pessimsm about [the legislature's]
ability to solve the fiscal gap. He stated his opinion that he
wasn't sure if HB 422 is the prudent course for [the
| egi sl ature] to take at this point.

Number 0937

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG stated that the anendnent in Section 1
wasn' t really necessary because if the managenent of
responsibility is not transferred to the Al aska Permanent Fund
Cor por at i on, then automatically the conm ssioner of t he
Depart ment of Revenue would invest the noney in the CBRF.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOWN TZ asked if the managerial function
proposed in Section 1 of the bill would be sonmething that could
be done by executive order.

Nunber 1042

MR. BOUTIN answered that he wasn't really sure if that could
happen.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ asked about the inpact on the state's
bond rating if the change proposed in HB 422 is put in effect.

MR, BOUTIN said that there would be no bond-rating inpact by
changing from one investnent to another. He explained that the
CBRF is used by the state as a cash flow buffer, and comrented
on the inmportance of a cash flow buffer to the credit-rating
agenci es. He added that he doesn't believe the choice in
investnments that noney managers can decide from is a credit-
rating issue. He went on to explain that if the cash flow
buffer is invested in sonething other than liquid assets, like
real estate, then it may be an issue.

Nunmber 1158

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ asked if the Departnment of Revenue had
checked with any of the bond-rating entities. He said he feels

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -27- February 26, 2004



that renoving one of the bulwarks of protection from the CBRF
could have sone adverse conseguences. He stated that due
diligence would require the Departnment of Revenue to at | east
ask the credit-rating agencies before proceeding.

MR. BOUTIN said that the Departnent of Revenue is in touch wth
al | three nmjor credit-rating agencies, and noving the
subaccount from equities into fixed income does not pose any
concern.

Number 1211

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ asked if the Departnent of Revenue has
been affirmatively told by a credit-rating agency that it would
have no effect, or if M. Boutin was pulling from his experience
dealing with the credit-rating agenci es.

MR. BQUTIN said that this issue doesn't rise to the level that
woul d require direct input fromthe credit-rating agencies. He
explained it was an investnent nmanagenent nove and that they
need the authority to do it. He added that if the Departnent of
Revenue was proposing to elimnate the CBRF, then that would be
a credit-rating issue, but shifting a $400-mllion subaccount
over tinme fromequities to a fixed-incone account has no credit-
rating issues.

Number 1281

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ asked if the Departnent of Revenue was
signaling to the credit-rating agencies that sonething was w ong
by raiding this $400 mllion dollar subaccount to bal ance the
state budget. He added that it seens |like a very strong signal
to Wall Street.

MR. BOUTIN explained that the Departnent of Revenue is not
spending any noney from the CBRF with HB 422; it is nerely

noving investnents from one account to another. He added that
if this were an expenditure of $400 million, it may be a credit
i ssue. M. Boutin clarified that HB 422 would just allow the

Departnent of Revenue to transfer investnents to a different
account that it feels is a nore prudent type of investnent,
given the way the CBRF is currently used.

Nunber 1382

CHAI R WVEYHRAUCH sunmari zed the questions that he felt needed to
be answered by the Departnent of Revenue the next tinme the House

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 28- February 26, 2004



State Affairs Standing Commttee heard HB 422. He expl ai ned
that some of the concerns are sonmewhat philosophical in terns,
relating to long-term versus short-term investnents and the
relationship to the creditor bond rating, since HB 422 would
renove the noney froma | ong-term account.

[HB 422 was hel d over. ]

DI SCUSSI ON W TH DI VI SI ON OF ELECTI ONS

Nunmber 1448

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH turned attention to questions to be submtted
from the House State Affairs Standing Commttee to the Division
of Elections for response. There was discussion of a possible
forthcom ng Iist of questions for response fromthe discussion.

ADJ OQURNVENT
Nunber 1527
There being no further business before the commttee, the House

State Affairs Standing Conmmttee neeting was adjourned at 10:02
a. m

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -29- February 26, 2004



